

MEETING OF THE PORT PHILLIP CITY COUNCIL

MINUTES

17 MAY 2023



Please consider the environment before printing



Consider carefully how the information in this document is transmitted



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE PORT PHILLIP CITY COUNCIL HELD 17 MAY 2023 IN ST KILDA TOWN HALL AND VIRTUAL VIA WEBEX

The meeting opened at 6:32pm.

IN ATTENDANCE

Cr Cunsolo (Chairperson), Cr Baxter, Cr Bond, Cr Clark, Cr Crawford, Cr Martin, Cr Nyaguy, Cr Pearl, Cr Sirakoff.

Chris Carroll, Chief Executive Officer, Allison Kenwood, General Manager Community Wellbeing and Inclusion, Lachlan Johnson, General Manager, Operations and Infrastructure, Brian Tee, General Manager Governance, Capability and Experience, Lauren Bialkower, Acting General Manager City Growth and Development, David Taylor, Executive Manager Governance and Organisational Performance, Rebecca Purvis Council Business Advisor, Emily Williams, Council Business Advisor, Charmaine Mackrodt, Governance and Council Meetings Officer, Nellie Montague, Coordinator Strategic Transport.

The City of Port Phillip respectfully acknowledges the Traditional Owners of this land, the people of the Kulin Nations. We pay our respect to their Elders, past and present. We acknowledge and uphold their continuing relationship to this land.

REQUESTS TO ATTEND BY ELECTRONIC MEANS

MOVED Crs Pearl/ Nyaguy

That Council approves the request to attend by electronic means received by Councillor Clark.

A Vote was taken and the MOTION was CARRIED unanimously.

1. APOLOGIES

Nil.

2. CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

MOVED Crs Crawford/Martin

That the minutes of the Meeting of the Port Phillip City Council held on 3 May 2023 be confirmed.

A Vote was taken and the MOTION was CARRIED unanimously.

3. DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Nil.



CONDOLENCE MOTION - GEOFFREY LOVE

Local Environment Campaigner and passionate member of the community who sadly passed away.

MOVED Crs Baxter/Crawford

That Council:

- Expresses its deep regret on the passing of Geoffrey Love.
- Offers its sincere condolences to their family and places on record its appreciation for their service to the City of Port Phillip.

A vote was taken and the MOTION was CARRIED unanimously.

4. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME AND SUBMISSIONS

Public questions are summarised below. The submissions were made verbally and can be listened to in full on our website: <u>http://webcast.portphillip.vic.gov.au/archivephp</u>

Public Question Time:

• **Isaac Hermann:** In relation to the renewal of laneways, at the Council meeting on 15 February 2017, Council resolved to cease bitumen and concrete sealing of laneways. I have visited laneways recently during the rain and I've seen laneways that have been re sealed but still have puddles in them. Who or what body authorised the recommencement of Council laneway renewals that were ceased by council decision 15 February 2017?

In relation to the sustainability of laneway renewals, are planning amendments (specifically VC154) being adhered to when works are being carried out and how is integrated water management being embedded in these works? I understand that the City of Glen Eira have engaged consultants looking at permeability modelling and mapping throughout municipalities, this work is supposed to be have been very successful. Given that the City of Port Phillip a number of years ago had over 80% of its land surface impervious, is it about time we did some remodeling to see how far we have deteriorated?

Lachlan Johnson, General Manager, Operations and Infrastructure advised that Council considered this in February 2017 and Council noted that the ceiling of laneways had been halted. Council further considered the item in June 2022. Each year Council puts out its Draft Budget for community consultation with a proposed works program including the sealing and reconstruction of laneways. The laneways program is consulted on each year as part of that process, but took the question on notice to provide a more detailed assessment about where Council resolved to continue the sealing of laneways.

Council Report Submissions:

Item 9.1 Proposed Positive Aging Policy 2023-27.

Wendy Priddle
Ian McDonald

Item 10.1 Parking Management Policy, One-Year Review.

Noel Creece
Ian Lodewyckx

Item 12.1 Proposed Carlisle Street Special Rate Declaration Report

Ronald Serry



5. COUNCILLOR QUESTION TIME

Nil.

6. SEALING SCHEDULE

Nil.

7. PETITIONS AND JOINT LETTERS

7.1 Requesting 'Keep Clear' Signage to be applied to Montague Street at the intersection of Woodgate Street, Southbank.

A Petition containing 16 signatures was received from local residents.

MOVED Crs Cunsolo/Martin

That Council:

- 1. Receives and thanks the petitioners for their petition.
- 2. Notes that the road management authority for Montague Street is the Department of Transport and Planning.
- 3. Requests Council officers approach the Department of Transport and Planning for the assessment of the request for Keep Clear markings to be installed on Montague Street at Woodgate Street and communicate the response back to the petitioners.
- 4. Requests Council officers to also request the Department of Transport and Planning to assess the need for Keep Clear markings to be installed on Montague Street at Gladstone Street, Buckhurst Street and Thistlewaite Street.

A vote was taken and the MOTION was CARRIED unanimously.

8. PRESENTATION OF CEO REPORT

8.1 Presentation of CEO Report - Issue 95

Purpose

1.1 To provide Council with a regular update from the Chief Executive Officer regarding Council's activities and performance.

MOVED Crs Martin/Crawford

That Council:

3.1 Notes the CEO Report Issue 95 (provided as Attachment 1) including changes to budget forecasts and project portfolio identified in March 2023.



9. INCLUSIVE PORT PHILLIP

9.1 Proposed Positive Ageing Policy 2023-27

Purpose

- 1.1 To provide an update to Council on the draft Positive Ageing Policy 2023-27 and key document amendments in response to community feedback provided.
- 1.2 To present to Council for endorsement the Positive Ageing Policy 2023-27.

MOVED Crs Martin/Nyaguy

That Council:

- 3.1 Notes the results of the community consultation on the draft Positive Ageing Policy 2023-27as presented in this Report (Attachment Two).
- 3.2 Adopts the Positive Ageing Policy 2023-27 (Attachment One) and delegates to the CEO the ability to make changes that do not alter the substantive content of the document.
- 3.3 Request officers prepare an implementation plan, in consultation with stakeholders

A vote was taken and the MOTION was CARRIED unanimously.

10. LIVEABLE PORT PHILLIP

10.1 Parking Management Policy One-Year Review

Purpose

1.1 To present the findings and recommendations from the one-year review of the Parking Management Policy 2020 for endorsement.

MOVED Crs Pearl/Bond

That Council:

3.1 Thanks the community for their input to the review of the Parking Management Policy (Policy).

Part 1. Permits outside the Policy and legacy permit types

- 3.2 Create a free legacy Victoria Police (VicPol) permit type in the Policy for permits currently issued to South Melbourne and St Kilda VicPol staff.
- 3.3 Do not reissue parking permits after 30 June 2023 to Southbank VicPol staff.
- 3.4 Create a cost recovery legacy Volunteer permit type in the Policy for all volunteer groups currently issued permits.
- 3.5 Create a legacy Foreshore Community Service permit type in the Policy at the cost of a residential foreshore permit.



- 3.6 Provide resident permits for residents verified by Port Phillip Zero Service Coordination to support Port Phillip Zero's response to people experiencing homelessness.
- 3.7 Signpost two dedicated parking bays for South Melbourne Primary School at appropriate times.
- 3.8 Create a new free parking permit type for the below Members of Parliament in the Policy:
 - All Legislative Assembly members (State) and House of Representative members (Federal) whose electorate boundary overlaps that of Council.
 - All Legislative Council members (State) plus Senate members who have an electorate office within the City of Port Phillip.

Part 2. Parking permit provision and pricing

- 3.9 Legacy currently issued Foreshore Club Permits.
- 3.10 Add cost recovery fee for Community Service Parking Permits.
- 3.11 Replace current pricing with cost recovery fee for all parking permits for people who hold a concession card.
- 3.12 Add exceptional circumstance clause outlining financial hardship for waiving of the concession permit fee.

Part 3. Residential Parking Permit Area changes

- 3.13 Extend the boundary of Parking Area 6 north to Cobden Street.
- 3.14 Investigate residential parking outside non-residential properties at defined times in Parking Areas 7 and 8.
- 3.15 Incorporate the northern section of Parking Area 21, bound by Grey Street and Fitzroy Street, into Area 20.
- 3.16 Split Parking Area 24 into two areas along Neville Street.
- 3.17 Split Parking Area 25 into two areas along Dinsdale Street and Barrett Street and move the boundary from Bevan St to Bridport St.

Part 4. Clarification of terminology and updates

3.18 Council authorises the CEO or delegate to make changes to the definitions as detailed in Section 4 under delegation



10.2 Notice of Motion Response - Alma Park West Boundary Treatment

Purpose

1.1 To seek Councillors approval for the inclusion of a boundary treatment to address safety of children and dogs leaving Alma Park West via Alma Park Road.

MOVED Crs Baxter/Sirakoff

That Council:

- 3.1 Endorses Option 2 to Plant vegetation to create a barrier to improve the safety of children and dogs leaving the park at Alma Road
- 3.2 Approves additional funding of \$120,000 in 2023/24 financial year budget.

A vote was taken and the MOTION was CARRIED unanimously.

11. SUSTAINABLE PORT PHILLIP

11.1 Council Submission to South East Water's Fishermans Bend Water Recycling Facility Project (response to Planning Scheme Amendment C434MELB)

Purpose

1.1 To seek Council endorsement of the submission prepared by Council officers in response to Planning Scheme Amendment C434Melb (South East Water Fishermans Bend Water Recycling Facility Project) for land located within the City of Melbourne.

MOVED Crs Martin/Cunsolo

That Council:

- 3.1 Endorses the submission to Planning Scheme Amendment C434Melb included (Attachment Two) and authorises the Mayor to sign this submission and be lodged with the Minister for Planning on behalf of Council.
- 3.2 Thanks the Minister for Planning for seeking Council's view on the proposed planning scheme amendment prior to her making a decision.
- 3.3 Authorises the Chief Executive Officer (or delegate) to make minor editorial adjustments to the submission prior to lodgement.



12. VIBRANT PORT PHILLIP

12.1 Proposed Carlisle Street Special Rate Declaration Report

Purpose

1.1 To determine whether Council supports the declaration of the Carlisle Street Special Rate (**Special Rate**) for 2023 – 2028 period.

MOVED Crs Bond/Sirakoff

That Council:

- 3.1 Having considered all submissions received and taken account of all objections lodged and complied with the requirements of sections 163, 163A, 163B and 223 of the *Local Government Act 1989* (Act), and otherwise according to law, hereby declares the Carlisle Street Special Rate under section 163(1) of the Act for the sole purpose of marketing, promotion, business development of the Carlisle Street Business Precinct as detailed in the attached draft Declaration of Special Rate (Attachment One).
- 3.2 Authorises the Carlisle Street Traders Association (Association) to administer the proceeds of the Special Rate on the express condition that the Association enters into a funding agreement with Council for the period of the Special Rate.
- 3.3 Authorises Council's CEO, or delegate, for the purposes of paragraph 3.2 of this resolution, to prepare the funding agreement between Council and the Association by which administrative arrangements in relation to the Special Rate are confirmed, such agreement being to ensure that at all times, and as a precondition to the payment of any funds by Council to the Association, Council is, and remains legally responsible for approving, directing and controlling the expenditure of the proceeds of the Special Rate in accordance with its obligations under the Act to do so, and such funding agreement to be submitted to Council for signing.
- 3.4 Gives notice to all owners and occupiers of properties included in the Special Rate and all persons who have lodged a submission and/or objection of the decision of Council to declare and levy the Special Rate commencing on 1 July 2023, and the reasons for the decision.
 - 3.4.1 For the purposes of paragraph 3.4 of this resolution, the reasons for the decision of Council to declare the Special Rate are that:
 - there were 13.06 percent valid objections to the Special Rate, and it is otherwise considered that there is a broad level of support for the Special Rate from all property owners and occupiers;
 - 2. Council considers that it is acting in accordance with the functions and powers conferred on it under the Act, having regard to its role, purpose and objectives under the Act, particularly in relation to the encouragement of commerce, retail activity and employment opportunities in and around the Special Rate area;
 - 3. all persons who are liable or required to pay the Special Rate and the properties respectively owned or occupied by them will receive a special benefit in the form of an enhancement or maintenance in land values



and /or a maintenance or enhancement in the use, occupation and enjoyment of the properties; and

- 4. the basis of distribution of the Special Rate amongst those persons who are liable or required to pay the Special Rate is considered to be fair and reasonable.
- 3.5 Advises the Association of the matters specified in paragraphs 3.1, 3.2 and 3.3 of this resolution.
- 3.6 Notes the properties that are included in the Special Rate area will be subject to general re-valuations and supplementary valuations on the same cycle as the City of Port Phillip general rates and charges.

A vote was taken and the MOTION was CARRIED unanimously.

13. WELL GOVERNED PORT PHILLIP

13.1 Public Toilet Plan 2023 - 2033 - Draft for Public Consultation

Purpose

1.1 To present the draft Public Toilet Plan 2023 – 2033 and seek approval to commence a period of community consultation.

MOVED Crs Bond/Baxter

That Council:

- 3.1 Authorises the Draft Public Toilet Plan 2023 2033 to be released for a period of community consultation following the endorsement of the draft plan.
- 3.2 Notes that feedback from the consultation period will be presented alongside the final Public Toilet Plan 2023 2033 in August 2023.

A vote was taken and the MOTION was CARRIED unanimously.

13.2 Records of Informal Meetings of Council

Purpose

1.1 The purpose of this item is to report to Council written records of Informal Meetings of Councillors at the City of Port Phillip as required by the Governance rules.

MOVED Crs Pearl/Bond

That Council

2.1 Receives and notes the written records of Informal Meetings of Council (attached) as required by the Governance Rules.



14. NOTICES OF MOTION

Nil.

15. REPORTS BY COUNCILLOR DELEGATES

Nil.

16. URGENT BUSINESS

Nil.

17. CONFIDENTIAL MATTERS

MOVED Crs Sirakoff/Pearl

That Council resolves to move into confidential to deal with the following matters pursuant to section 66(2) of the *Local Government Act 2020*:

- 17.1 Public open space potential acquisition
 - 3(1)(a) Council business information, being information that would prejudice the Council's position in commercial negotiations if prematurely released
 - 3(1)(c) land use planning information, being information that if prematurely released is likely to encourage speculation in land values.

A vote was taken and the MOTION was CARRIED unanimously.

The meeting closed to members of the public at 7:50pm.

The meeting was reopened to the public at 8:34pm

As there was no further business the meeting closed at 8:34pm.

Confirmed: 7 June 2023

Chairperson